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                            STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY


	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	RFP# 202506086 Bureau of Motor Vehicle Self-Service Kiosks 

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Secretary of State

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	October 16, 2025

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	October 21, 2025

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	October 31, 2025, no later than 11:59 p.m. local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov



Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.

	[bookmark: _Hlk48905851]1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Can the State please identify issues that may prevent a citizen from being eligible to renew vehicle registrations, i.e., unpaid tolls, inspection, emissions, vehicle property taxes etc.?

	
	Answer

	
	Our system will not process the transaction if it does not meet the eligibility status for renewal based on the business rules of BMV.  



	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Are there any exclusive State contracts that would prevent vendors from providing the most secure credit card processing available at the kiosk?

	
	Answer

	
	The Treasury Department determines the policies regarding payment providers. I received feedback from our Accounting Department that Treasury maintains a strong relationship with Elavon/US Bank for credit card processing across all State agencies.



	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix E, Page 29
	Can the State please confirm that the estimated 50,000 transaction amount is annual for all eight kiosks?

	
	Answer

	
	That is our current estimate for a year of transactions based on current online transactions.



	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Scope of Services, Page 8
	Does the State have an existing appointment scheduling service that the kiosk would be required to integrate with? If so, who provides this service?

	
	Answer

	
	We do currently utilize ACF for our appointments system.  We have a customer Portal browser page that can be utilized or work with ACF for access. 



	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	APPENDIX E p.29
	Estimated number of Transactions is listed as 50,000,  For what time period?  Annual, month, etc?

	
	Answer

	
	This is for a Year.



	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Accessibility & Branding pg. 10
	Does the BMV expect kiosk design to meet wheelchair accessibility standards?

	
	Answer

	
	We are required to meet ADA Accessibility Standards, so yes, we will need the kiosk to be wheelchair accessibility.



	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Contract Term p.7
	The table shows that Renewal Period #1 end date is 10/31/2023, however Renewal Period #2 does not begin until 1/1/2030, leaving a two-month gap in contract periods.  Please explain the gap and vendor expectations in the two months in which there is no active contract.

	
	Answer

	
	Our apologies for the error in the dates.  Here are the correct dates: 



	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Will the BMV accept electronic signatures such as DocuSign on proposal forms requiring signatures?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, we will.



	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Will the BMV please clarify if the entire BMV will be participating in this procurement in addition to the kiosks part of the RFP?

	
	Answer

	
	At this time, it is only the kiosks included in this RFP.



	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Does the Bureau plan to accept any payment methods aside from credit cards under this procurement (debit cards, eChecks, digital wallets, etc.)?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, but it would upon approval from current credit card vendor and revenue services 



	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the annual dollar volume anticipated under this contract for kiosks? Can this be broken out by payment method?

	
	Answer

	
	Unable to answer this question at this time 



	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the annual transaction count anticipated under this contract for kiosks? Can this be broken out by payment method?

	
	Answer

	
	Unable to answer this question at this time 



	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Does the BMV have a list of locations for the kiosks, if so can you provide the locations?

	
	Answer

	
	Unable to answer this question at this time 



	



14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Will the awarded vendor(s) be required to integrate with any BMV software products? If so, what products?

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded vendor will be required to integrate via BMV RESTful APIs.  API documentation, including endpoints, parameters and response formats will be provided.  Additionally, authentication, supported data formats, which include JSON with UTF-8 encoding, are required.  A sandbox environment will be provided during the development phase.



	15
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Does the BMV currently pass a convenience fee on to its payers, or does the BMV pay its current vendor for processing fees? In either scenario, what are the current fees?

	
	Answer

	
	Unable to answer this question at this time 
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Period Start Date End Date
Initial Period of Performance 01/01/2026 1/01/2028
Renewal Period #1 01/01/2028 01/01/2030
Renewal Period #2 01/01/2030 01/01/2032





